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Introductory Section
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presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance 

management assumes full responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of  the information presented 

statements, but also on the audited government’s internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, 
with special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of  federal 
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Council-Manager form of  

vested in a governing council consisting of  a mayor and eleven members 

, a 

The  documents 
the 
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for a wide range of  clients including pensions, endowments, foundations, sovereign wealth funds, and private 

financial services center

transportation and distribution hub
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encompasses many sectors, as well as companies that range 

transitioned from being a leader in textiles to being a home to 

manufacturing with precision metrology, optoelectronics and 

Business Environment
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Uptown Development

has open space that can be used for computer training, movie screenings, and a gathering place for local 

growth outlook
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recreational, visitor and cultural events
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Golf  lovers can attend one of  the top events on the Professional Golfers’ Association of  America (PGA) 
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education

168566-CARF-4WEB.pdf   21 1/24/2017   4:54:25 PM



classes  during the evening and on Saturdays which helps to attract talented professionals and foster 

families, and is the most comprehensive such facility 

health care
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“Charlotte will be one of America’s safest communities.”

community where residents and visitors feel safe in their homes, their neighborhoods, 

“The City of Charlotte will create and sustain distinct and diverse neighborhoods for residents of 
all ages.”

diverse housing options, vibrant commercial corridors, and access to safe public 

housing programs to achieve geographical dispersion of  diverse housing options 

“Charlotte will become a global leader in environmental sustainability, preserving our natural 
resources while balancing growth with sound fiscal policy.”

resources, promoting conservation, and improving the environment all enhance the 

Community Safety

Housing & Neighborhood development

environment
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“Charlotte’s strong economy and attractive lifestyle will thrive due to our vibrant places healthy 
neighborhoods, and robust employment centers, supported by strategic transportation investments.”
A combination of  sound land use planning and continued transportation investment will 

establishing public and private sector partnerships to achieve effective transportation 

“Charlotte will strengthen its position as a city of prominence in the global marketplace by building 
upon its competitive advantages.”

with universities and the education system, local industry leaders, and other economic 

transportation & planning

economic development & global competitiveness
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This program includes funding for maintenance and expansion of  the existing bus, special transportation, 

This program includes funding for maintenance and expansion of  the existing system of  water and sewer 

aviation

charlotte area transit system (CATS)

storm water

water & sewer

general government
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1

Report of Independent Auditor

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the City Council 
City of Charlotte, North Carolina 

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina (the “City”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the 
financial statements of the Charlotte Regional Visitors Authority (the “CRVA”). Those statements were audited 
by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the 
amounts included for the CRVA, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we express 
no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Opinions
In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to above 
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the City as of June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position and, where 
applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison of the General Fund for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis and the other required supplementary information as listed in the table of contents be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to this information in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consist of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency 
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion 
or provide any assurance. 

Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual fund 
statements and schedules, statistical section as well as the accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal 
and State awards as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. 

The combining and individual fund statements and schedules, and the schedule of expenditures of federal and 
State awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America. In our opinion, based on our audit and the procedures performed as described above, the 
combining and individual fund statements and schedules, and the schedule of expenditures of federal and State 
awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.  

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 31, 2016 on 
our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. 
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Raleigh, North Carolina
October 31, 2016 
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MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Dollar Amounts in Millions) 

2016. Please read it in 

which follow this section.   

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$10,426.7, (net position).  Of this amount, $1,388.3 (unrestricted net position) may be used to

The overall financial position of the City improved in 2016 as evidenced by an increase in total net
position of $410.3.  This increase was from business-type activities ($418.3) offset by a slight
decrease in governmental activities ($8.0).

fund balances of $994.8, an increase of $57.0 in comparison with the prior year.  This increase
resulted from increased property tax revenues and sales of capital assets.
Unassigned fund balance in the General fund was $101.6 at June 30, 2016 and represents a
traditional fund balance reserve maintained for emergencies, liquidity and overall financial
strength.  This meets th rcent of the budget for fiscal year 2017. The

$21.8, is committed.
The City maintained its AAA bond rating from all three major rating agencies.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis 
serves as an introduction to the 

The basic financial statements 
present two different views of the 
City through the use of 
government-wide statements and 
fund financial statements. This 
diagram shows how the 
components of the annual report 
are arranged and relate to one 
another.

Components of the Annual Financial Report 

Basic Financial Statements 

Notes to the 
Financial 

Statements 

Fund Financial 
Statements 

Management's 
Discussion and 

Analysis 

Government-
wide Financial 

Statements 

Summary  Detail 
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Governmental Activities 

As shown in the chart, property, sales and other 
taxes (77 percent) and fees, fines and charges for 
services (12 percent) were the major sources of
revenues for governmental activities. 

Governmental expenses increased from $858.3 to 
$925.0 during this fiscal year.  This increase 
results in part from increased expenditures for 
street construction and public facilities 
maintenance. As in prior years, public safety 
continues to be the largest expense with 41 
percent in both the current and prior year. 

The following chart highlights the net cost (total cost less fees generated by the activities and 
ty, streets and 

highways and community planning and development.  The net cost shows the financial support 
provided by taxes and other general revenue sources not restricted to specific programs. 

In addition to property and other taxes, the total cost of services of $925.0 was supported by $72.0
provided by other governments and organizations for specific programs and $115.1 provided by fees, 
fines and charges from those who directly benefited from the programs. 
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Business-type Activities 

Revenues for the business-type activities were 
$1,100.0, a decrease of 1 percent from the prior 
year. This decrease is due in part to a change in the 
rate structure for Storm Water fees and a 16 percent 
increase in availability fees for Charlotte Water 
offset by a decrease in contributions as previously 
discussed.   

The chart below highlights the net cost of the Ci
business-type programs. For all business-type activities except Public Transit, user rates and fees are 
established to provide for operating expenses, debt service costs and adequate working capital.  
Public transit passenger fares are established to provide reasonably priced public mass transportation 
and therefore may not cover all operating costs.  In addition to fare revenues, state operating 
assistance grants, a one-half percent sales tax and contributions from other local governments fund 
the transit program. 

Airport expenses increased $16.4 or 8.7 percent from the prior year due in part to greater terminal and 
airfield utilization, addressing deferred maintenance and investments made at the request of the 

partners.
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Financial Section – Basic Financial Statem
ents

Photo by scott greer, City of Charlotte Employee
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Primary Government Component Unit
Charlotte Regional

Governmental Business-type Visitors
Activities Activities Total Authority

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 868,186$  998,518$  1,866,704$  21,323$  
Receivables, net 19,417 94,233 113,650 1,777
Due from other governmental agencies 88,995 157,507 246,502 663
Due from component unit 3,118 - 3,118 -
Due from primary government - - - 954
Internal balances (6,082) 6,082 - -
Inventories 1,426 8,669 10,095 463
Other 90 - 90 395
Restricted assets:
 Temporarily restricted-

 Cash and cash equivalents 6,394 400,052 406,446 -
 Investments 127,076 59,866 186,942 -

 Permanently restricted-
    Cash and cash equivalents 3,111 - 3,111 -
Notes receivable 87,511 - 87,511 -
Other postemployment benefit assets (Note 5.f.) - 26,133 26,133 -
Capital assets (Note 4.f.)
 Land 3,240,220 406,565 3,646,785 -
 Buildings, improvements, infrastructure,
   intangibles, and machinery and equipment, net 2,487,510 4,389,783 6,877,293 -
 Construction in progress 257,521 1,627,389 1,884,910 -

 Total assets 7,184,493 8,174,797 15,359,290 25,575

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension deferrals (Note 5) 1,634 53 1,687 60
Contributions to pension plan in current fiscal year (Note 5) 26,530 6,123 32,653 932
Accumulated decreases in fair value of hedging derivatives 67,220 50,781 118,001 -
Unamortized bond refunding charges 5,829 18,000 23,829 -

 Total deferred outflows of resources 101,213 74,957 176,170 992

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable/claims payable 100,880 105,008 205,888 4,949
Deposits and retainage payable 11,649 25,171 36,820 5,418
Accrued interest payable 12,590 35,330 47,920 -
Due to component unit 894 60 954 -
Due to primary government - - - 3,118
Unearned revenues 859 - 859 29
Liabilities payable from restricted assets 5,407 62,020 67,427 -
Net pension liability (Note 5) 39,076 7,291 46,367 983
Noncurrent liabilities (Note 4.j.):
 Due within one year 267,748 106,990 374,738 -
 Due after one year 1,473,582 2,827,519 4,301,101 6,993

 Total liabilities 1,912,685 3,169,389 5,082,074 21,490

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Prepaid taxes 316 - 316 -
Pension deferrals (Note 5) 23,672 2,668 26,340 511

 Total deferred inflows of resources 23,988 2,668 26,656 511

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 4,563,879 3,676,609 8,240,488 -
Restricted for:
 State statute 68,699 - 68,699 -
 Debt service 6,215 60,397 66,612 -
 Perpetual care - Nonexpendable 90,622 - 90,622 -
 Other purposes (Note 1.d.(8)) 188,989 - 188,989 -
 Passenger facility charges - 317,283 317,283 -
 Contract facility charges - 30,116 30,116 -
 Airport working capital - 35,588 35,588 -

Unrestricted 430,629 957,704 1,388,333 4,566
 Total net position 5,349,033$    5,077,697$   10,426,730$   4,566$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Fees, Fines
and Operating Capital

Charges for Grants and Grants and
ACTIVITIES Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary Government:
  Governmental-
     Public safety 374,328$ 38,772$ 8,985$ 3,339$
     Sanitation 55,717 8,824 509 500
     General administration 58,256 2,913 - - 
     Support services 31,210 35,828 16 21
     Engineering and property management 52,044 11,224 - 222
     Streets and highways 174,912 9,080 20,460 14,008
     Culture and recreation 45,158 3,629 2,948 1,038
     Community planning and development 75,889 4,859 18,274 1,682
     Interest and other charges 57,498 - - -
        Total governmental 925,012 115,129 51,192 20,810
  Business-type-
     Water 143,992 166,043 - 11,032
     Sewer 163,565 211,084 - 15,238
     Storm water 16,614 70,042 - -
     Airport 205,860 277,891 - 20,706
     Public transit 173,243 32,404 10,945 194,994
        Total business-type 703,274 757,464 10,945 241,970
        Total primary government 1,628,286$ 872,593$ 62,137$ 262,780$
Component Unit:
  Charlotte Regional
    Visitors Authority 59,699$ 36,100$ -$ -$

General revenues:
  Taxes-
     Property
     Sales
     Sales, levied for Public Transit
     Utility franchise
     Occupancy
     Prepared foods
     Business privilege
     Municipal vehicle
  Payment from City of Charlotte
  Grants and contributions not restricted
      to specific programs
  Investment earnings
  Miscellaneous
Transfers
        Total general revenues and transfers
        Change in net position
Net position - beginning
Net position - ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Program Revenues
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Component Unit
Charlotte Regional

Governmental Business-type Visitors
Activities Activities Total Authority

(323,232)$ -$ (323,232)$ -$
(45,884) - (45,884) - 
(55,343) - (55,343) - 

4,655 - 4,655 - 
(40,598) - (40,598) - 

(131,364) - (131,364) - 
(37,543) - (37,543) - 
(51,074) - (51,074) - 
(57,498) - (57,498) -

(737,881) - (737,881) -

- 33,083 33,083 - 
- 62,757 62,757 - 
- 53,428 53,428 - 
- 92,737 92,737 - 
- 65,100 65,100 -
- 307,105 307,105 -

(737,881) 307,105 (430,776) -

- - - (23,599)

452,209 - 452,209 - 
114,192 - 114,192

- 89,617 89,617 - 
53,545 - 53,545 - 
49,079 - 49,079 - 
30,026 - 30,026 - 

283 - 283 - 
17,068 - 17,068 - 

- - - 25,260

23,383 - 23,383 - 
4,670 7,065 11,735 55
7,012 (7,091) (79) 160

(21,609) 21,609 - -
729,858 111,200 841,058 25,475

(8,023) 418,305 410,282 1,876
5,357,056 4,659,392 10,016,448 2,690
5,349,033$ 5,077,697$ 10,426,730$ 4,566$

Primary Government

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Other Total
Debt Capital Governmental Governmental

General Service Projects Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 184,036$ 276,235$ 107,465$ 181,998$ 749,734$
Receivables, net:
  Property taxes 9,316 2,059 316 107 11,798
  Accounts 5,546 - 120 191 5,857
  Other - - - 282 282
    Total receivables 14,862 2,059 436 580 17,937
Due from other governmental agencies 46,894 5,732 19,563 16,798 88,987
Due from other funds 190 4,400 - - 4,590
Due from component unit - 2,820 298 - 3,118
Inventories 1,426 - - - 1,426
Prepaid expenditures - - - 90 90
Restricted assets:
  Cash and cash equivalents - 79 6,315 - 6,394
  Investments - 36 127,040 - 127,076
    Total restricted assets - 115 133,355 - 133,470
Notes receivable 13 - 50,261 37,237 87,511
    Total assets 247,421$ 291,361$ 311,378$ 236,703$ 1,086,863$

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 34,281$ 344$ 9,861$ 4,979$ 49,465$
Deposits and retainage payable 8,926 - 2,378 345 11,649
Due to other funds - - 4,400 190 4,590
Due to component unit - - 296 598 894
Unearned revenues - - - 859 859
Liabilities payable from restricted assets - - 5,407 - 5,407
    Total liabilities 43,207 344 22,342 6,971 72,864

Deferred inflows of resources:
Prepaid taxes 316 - - - 316
Unavailable revenues 12,892 4,879 734 395 18,900
    Total deferred inflows of resources 13,208 4,879 734 395 19,216

Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
  Inventories 1,426 - - - 1,426
  Perpetual care - - - 3,111 3,111
  Long-term notes receivable 13 - 50,261 37,237 87,511
Restricted:
  State statute 62,967 5,732 - - 68,699
  Special obligation debt service - 6,215 - - 6,215

Other purposes (Note 1.d.(8)) - - - 188,989 188,989
Committed:
  Capital projects 21,795 - 238,041 - 259,836

Other purposes (Note 1.d.(8)) 3,215 34,510 - - 37,725
Assigned:
  Debt service - 239,681 - - 239,681
Unassigned (Note 3) 101,590 - - - 101,590
    Total fund balances 191,006 286,138 288,302 229,337 994,783
    Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
    resources and fund balances 247,421$ 291,361$ 311,378$ 236,703$ 1,086,863$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Total fund balances for governmental funds 994,783$

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position is different because:

5,985,233

26,415

93,143

52,369

(1,741,987)

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Contributions to pension plans in the current fiscal year
are deferred outflows of resources

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds.

Internal service funds are used to charge the costs of insured and
uninsured risks of loss as well as employee health and life claims to
individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds
are included in governmental activities in the statement of net position.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the funds. (Note 2.a.)

Net pension liability (38,944)

Pension related deferrals (21,979)

Total net position of governmental activities 5,349,033$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

168566-CARF-4WEB.pdf   51 1/24/2017   4:54:26 PM



CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Other Total
Debt Capital Governmental Governmental

General Service Projects Funds Funds
REVENUES:
  Property taxes 348,988$ 86,539$ 11,153$ 4,883$ 451,563$
  Other taxes 101,993 18,131 11,003 77,386 208,513
  Intergovernmental 99,938 1,158 9,425 55,942 166,463
  Licenses, fees and fines 27,973 58 14,504 828 43,363
  Investment earnings 943 1,275 585 942 3,745
  Private contributions - - 4,039 - 4,039
  Administrative charges 34,793 - - - 34,793
  Charges for current services 7,234 - - - 7,234
  Miscellaneous 2,267 160 560 7,064 10,051
        Total revenues 624,129 107,321 51,269 147,045 929,764
EXPENDITURES:
  Current-
    Public safety 347,184 - - 12,003 359,187
    Sanitation 52,265 - - - 52,265
    General administration 38,475 - - 1,819 40,294
    Support services 29,707 - - 21 29,728
    Engineering and property management 20,973 - - - 20,973
    Streets and highways 32,859 - - 30,065 62,924
    Culture and recreation 4,721 - - 22,591 27,312
    Community planning and development 26,765 - (3,803) 26,851 49,813
  Debt service-
    Principal - 112,033 - - 112,033
    Interest and other charges - 66,557 - - 66,557
  Capital outlay - - 154,320 - 154,320
        Total expenditures 552,949 178,590 150,517 93,350 975,406
        Excess (deficiency) of revenues
           over (under) expenditures 71,180 (71,269) (99,248) 53,695 (45,642)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
  Sales of capital assets 934 - 33,043 50 34,027
  Commercial paper issued - - 66,213 - 66,213
  Installment purchases issued - 185 23,500 - 23,685
  Refunding debt issued - 33,010 - - 33,010
  Premium on debt issuance - 5,906 - - 5,906
  Payment to refunded bond escrow agent - (38,650) - - (38,650)
  Transfers in 3,268 93,173 75,984 14,572 186,997
  Transfers out (61,206) (31,341) (51,436) (64,623) (208,606)
        Total other financing sources (uses) (57,004) 62,283 147,304 (50,001) 102,582
        Net change in fund balances 14,176 (8,986) 48,056 3,694 56,940
Fund balances - beginning 176,830 295,124 240,246 225,643 937,843
Fund balances - ending 191,006$ 286,138$ 288,302$ 229,337$ 994,783$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 56,940$

The change in net position reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities is different because:

(59,599)

26,415

(44,766)

844

22,843

(13,636)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays
exceeded depreciation in the current period. (Note 2.b.)

Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal year
are not included on the statement of activities

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving
capital assets (i.e., sales and donations) is to decrease
net position. (Note 2.b.)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds and installment purchases)
provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the
repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial
resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction has any effect on net
position in the government-wide statements. Also, governmental funds report
the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts and similar items when
debt is issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences
in the treatment of long-term debt and related items. (Note 2.b.)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. (Note 2.b.)

Internal service funds are used to charge the costs of insured and
uninsured risks of loss as well as employee health and life claims to
individual funds. The net revenue of certain activities of the internal
service funds is reported with governmental activities. 2,936

Change in net position of governmental activities (8,023)$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

168566-CARF-4WEB.pdf   53 1/24/2017   4:54:26 PM



CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF BUDGETARY COMPARISON
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) (Negative)

REVENUES:
  Property taxes 340,021$ 340,021$ 348,988$ 8,967$
  Sales tax 88,803 88,803 96,205 7,402
  Other taxes 5,121 5,121 5,788 667
  Utilities sales tax 41,820 41,820 53,546 11,726
  Other intergovernmental 39,072 39,107 38,788 (319)
  Refuse fees 9,328 8,734 8,221 (513)
  CATV franchises 7,873 7,873 7,604 (269)
  Other licenses, fees and fines 15,329 15,923 19,752 3,829
  Investment earnings 553 553 943 390
  Administrative charges 30,202 35,444 34,793 (651)
  Charges for current services 8,358 8,358 7,234 (1,124)
  Miscellaneous 2,986 3,111 2,267 (844)
  Sales of capital assets 1,667 1,667 934 (733)
  Transfers in-
    Debt Service 112 112 112 - 
    Special Revenue - Convention Center Tax 3,487 3,487 3,143 (344)
    Cemetery Trust 96 96 13 (83)
      Total transfers in 3,695 3,695 3,268 (427)
        Resources available for appropriation 594,828 600,230 628,331 28,101$
  Fund balance appropriated (contributed) - 33,958 (276)
        Total amounts available for appropriation 594,828$ 634,188$ 628,055$

EXPENDITURES:
  Public safety 339,662$ 350,082$ 350,082$ -$
  Sanitation 54,066 56,009 54,198 1,811
  General administration 51,158 40,334 39,923 411
  Support services 19,655 33,896 33,798 98
  Engineering and property management 23,349 23,277 22,560 717
  Streets and highways 34,605 35,143 33,839 1,304
  Culture and recreation 4,721 4,721 4,721 - 
  Community planning and development 28,381 28,875 27,728 1,147
  Transfers out-
    Debt Service 16,794 16,998 16,998 - 
    Capital Projects 16,540 38,956 38,956 - 
    Special Revenue:
      State Street Aid 4,261 4,261 4,261 - 
      Tourism 1,291 1,291 646 645
      Public Safety and Other Grants 345 345 345 -
      Total transfers out 39,231 61,851 61,206 645
        Total charges to appropriations 594,828$ 634,188$ 628,055$ 6,133$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Budgeted Amounts
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF BUDGETARY COMPARISON TO THE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Sources (inflows) of resources:
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "available for appropriation" from
  the statement of budgetary comparison 628,055$ 
Differences - budget to GAAP:
Contributed fund balance is a budgetary resource available for appropriation
     but is not a current-year revenue for financial reporting purposes. 276
  Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources but
     are not revenues for financial reporting purposes. (3,268)
  Proceeds from the sale of salvage and land are budgetary
     resources but are regarded as other financing resources, rather
     than revenue, for financial reporting purposes. (934)
Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues,
  expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds 624,129$ 

Uses (outflows) of resources:
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total charges to appropriations" from
  the statement of budgetary comparison 628,055$ 
Differences - budget to GAAP:
  Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but not received are
     reported in the year the order is placed for budgetary purposes, but in the
     year the supplies are received for financial reporting purposes. (13,900)
  Transfers to other funds are outflows of budgetary resources but are not
     expenditures for financial reporting purposes. (61,206)
Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures
  and changes in fund balances - governmental funds 552,949$ 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Water and Storm
Sewer Water Airport

ASSETS
Current assets:
 Cash and cash equivalents 321,893$ 75,706$ 523,696$
 Receivables, net-

 Accounts 47,083 10,604 32,941
 Other 499 81 1,460

 Total receivables 47,582 10,685 34,401
 Due from other governmental agencies 1,697 478 20,835
 Inventories 1,556 - -
 Restricted assets-

 Cash and cash equivalents 4 6,752 392,492
 Investments 5 14,029 32,575

 Total restricted assets 9 20,781 425,067
       Total current assets 372,737 107,650 1,003,999

Noncurrent assets:
 Other postemployment benefit assets 17,478 1,190 6,892
 Capital assets-

 Land 43,600 - 306,101
 Buildings 27,770 - 910,665
 Improvements other than buildings:

 Water and sewer systems 4,149,870 - -
 Storm water systems - 460,735 -
 Runways - - 415,382
 Transit corridors - - -
 Other - - 148,865

      Total improvements other than buildings 4,149,870 460,735 564,247
 Intangibles 18,610 3,359 3,317
 Machinery and equipment 39,143 69 114,134
 Construction in progress 491,342 191,540 104,147
      Total capital assets 4,770,335 655,703 2,002,611
 Less accumulated depreciation 1,504,222 61,622 699,746

 Total capital assets, net 3,266,113 594,081 1,302,865
 Total noncurrent assets 3,283,591 595,271 1,309,757
 Total assets 3,656,328 702,921 2,313,756

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension deferrals 25 4 11
Contributions to pension plan in current fiscal year 2,757 474 1,501
Accumulated decreases in fair value of hedging
  derivatives 50,781 - -
Unamortized bond refunding charges 15,421 1,406 1,070

 Total deferred outflows of resources 68,984 1,884 2,582

Business-type Activities - 
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Governmental
 Enterprise Funds Activities - 

Public Internal Service
Transit Total Funds

77,223$ 998,518$ 121,563$

1,303 91,931 -
262 2,302 286

1,565 94,233 286
134,497 157,507 8 

7,113 8,669 -

804 400,052 -
13,257 59,866 -
14,061 459,918 -

234,459 1,718,845 121,857

573 26,133 -

56,864 406,565 -
121,602 1,060,037 -

- 4,149,870 -
- 460,735 -
- 415,382 -

337,014 337,014 -
36,584 185,449 -

373,598 5,548,450 -
8,605 33,891 -

221,678 375,024 181
840,360 1,627,389 -

1,622,707 9,051,356 181
362,029 2,627,619 163

1,260,678 6,423,737 18
1,261,251 6,449,870 18
1,495,710 8,168,715 121,875

13 53 1 
1,391 6,123 115

- 50,781 -
103 18,000 -

1,507 74,957 116
Continued on next page
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION-(Continued)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Water and Storm
Sewer Water Airport

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
 Accounts payable 20,746$ 1,872$ 28,388$
 Claims payable - - -
 Deposits and retainage payable 4,914 1,509 4,672
 Accrued interest payable 33,816 535 -
 Due to component unit - - 60
 Current maturities of long-term liabilities 91,391 7,737 1,166
 Current liabilities payable from

 restricted assets-
 Accounts payable - 7,181 275
 Deposits and retainage payable - 1,030 575
 Accrued interest payable - - 12,992
 Revenue bonds payable - - 25,906

 Total current liabilities payable from
 restricted assets - 8,211 39,748

       Total current liabilities 150,867 19,864 74,034
Noncurrent liabilities:
 General obligation bonds payable - net of unamortized premium 108,233 6,180 -
 Revenue bonds payable - net of unamortized premium 1,457,662 163,696 589,765
 Revenue bond anticipation notes payable - - 65,621
 Commercial paper notes payable 18,118 - -
 Other financing agreements - net of unamortized premium 10,576 - -
 TIFIA loan agreement - - -
 Derivative instrument liability 50,781 - -
 Federal revolving loan payable - 977 -
 Refundable water and sewer construction deposits 4,539 - -
 Due to participants - - -
 Compensated absences payable 2,233 221 1,499
 Net pension liability 3,189 572 1,944
 Net OPEB liability - - -

 Total noncurrent liabilities 1,655,331 171,646 658,829
 Total liabilities 1,806,198 191,510 732,863

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension deferrals 1,385 192 347

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 1,583,337 436,668 732,366
Restricted for:
 Debt service - - 60,397
 Passenger facility charges - - 317,283
 Contract facility charges - - 30,116
 Working capital - - 35,588

Unrestricted 334,392 76,435 407,378
 Total net position 1,917,729$   513,103$ 1,583,128$

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds.
Net position of business-type activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Business-type Activities - 
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Governmental
 Enterprise Funds Activities - 

Public Internal Service
Transit Total Funds

54,002$ 105,008$ 986$
- - 50,429

14,076 25,171 -
979 35,330 -

- 60 -
6,696 106,990 115

14,061 21,517 -
- 1,605 -
- 12,992 -
- 25,906 -

14,061 62,020 -
89,814 334,579 51,530

- 114,413 -
- 2,211,123 -
- 65,621 -
- 18,118 -

256,562 267,138 -
88,353 88,353 -

- 50,781 -
- 977 -
- 4,539 -
- - 11,596

2,503 6,456 40
1,586 7,291 -

- - 182
349,004 2,834,810 11,818
438,818 3,169,389 63,348

744 2,668 60

924,238 3,676,609 18

- 60,397 -
- 317,283 -
- 30,116 -
- 35,588 -

133,417 951,622 58,433
1,057,655$   5,071,615 58,451$

6,082
5,077,697$   
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Water and Storm
Sewer Water Airport

OPERATING REVENUES:
  Charges for services 313,781$ 70,042$ 195,410$
  Availability fees 37,113 - - 
  Capacity fees 19,157 - - 
  Miscellaneous 7,076 - 11,037
        Total operating revenues 377,127 70,042 206,447
OPERATING EXPENSES:
  Administration 28,728 2,099 27,432
  Operations and maintenance 91,487 7,482 77,417
  Claims and insurance premiums - - - 
  Other 1,929 - 13,166
  Depreciation 103,772 7,731 50,681
        Total operating expenses 225,916 17,312 168,696
        Operating income (loss) 151,211 52,730 37,751
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
  Sales tax - - - 
  Grant contributions - - - 
  Passenger facility charges - - 59,171
  Contract facility charges - - 12,273
  Investment earnings 1,768 304 4,595
  Interest expense and other charges (82,368) 643 (18,898)
  Non-airline terminal revenue distribution - - (18,525)
  Miscellaneous 4,404 37 (11,973)
        Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (76,196) 984 26,643
        Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 75,015 53,714 64,394
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 26,270 - 20,706
TRANSFERS IN - - - 
TRANSFERS OUT - - -
        Change in net position 101,285 53,714 85,100
Total net position - beginning 1,816,444 459,389 1,498,028
Total net position - ending 1,917,729$ 513,103$ 1,583,128$

        Adjustments to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds.
        Change in net position of business-type activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Business-type Activities - 
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Governmental
 Enterprise Funds Activities - 

Public Internal Service
Transit Total Funds

32,404$ 611,637$ 124,755$
- 37,113 - 
- 19,157 - 
- 18,113 -

32,404 686,020 124,755

8,262 66,521 10,090
120,369 296,755 - 

- - 110,274
- 15,095 - 

37,659 199,843 5
166,290 578,214 120,369

(133,886) 107,806 4,386

89,617 89,617 - 
10,945 10,945 - 

- 59,171 - 
- 12,273 - 

398 7,065 512
(7,874) (108,497) - 

- (18,525) - 
441 (7,091) -

93,527 44,958 512
(40,359) 152,764 4,898
194,994 241,970 - 
21,609 21,609 - 

- - -
176,244 416,343 4,898
881,411 53,553

1,057,655$ 58,451$

1,962
418,305$
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Water and Storm
Sewer Water Airport

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
  Receipts from customers 378,010$ 68,600$ 202,847$ 
  Receipts from participants - - -
  Payments to suppliers (53,535) (954) (70,787)
  Internal activity - (payments to) receipts from other funds (23,988) (1,117) (21,591)
  Receipts from trust - - - 
  Receipts from recovery of losses - - - 
  Payments to employees (43,083) (7,100) (23,572)
  Payments to airlines for non-airline 
    terminal revenue distribution - - (14,808)
  Payments for claims - - - 
  Payments for premiums - - - 
  Other receipts (payments) (22,106) 822 (9,676)
    Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 235,298 60,251 62,413
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
  Operating grants - - - 
  Sales tax - - - 
  Transfers - - -
    Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities - - -
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
 FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
  Proceeds from capital debt 97,162 - 22,326
  Passenger facility charges - - 63,676
  Contract facility charges - - 12,148
  Acquisition and construction of capital assets (100,750) (50,495) (90,920)
  Principal paid on capital debt (79,583) (4,735) (22,385)
  Interest and other charges paid on capital debt (105,399) (7,725) (27,406)
  Capital contributions 196 200 23,996
    Net cash (used) by capital and 
      related financing activities (188,374) (62,755) (18,565)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
  Purchase of investments (164) (27) (53,851)
  Proceeds from sale and maturities of investments 1,438 26,631 42,504
  Interest received 1,522 280 4,202
    Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 2,796 26,884 (7,145)
    Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 49,720 24,380 36,703
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 272,177 58,078 879,485
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 321,897$ 82,458$ 916,188$ 

Business-type Activities - 
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Governmental
 Enterprise Funds Activities - 

Public Internal Service
Transit Total Funds

32,315$ 681,772$ -$
- - 37,861

(50,825) (176,101) (8,438)
(10,537) (57,233) 69,041

- - 23,979
- - 228

(66,682) (140,437) (1,719)

- (14,808) - 
- - (90,010)
- - (27,035)

414 (30,546) 211
(95,315) 262,647 4,118

10,945 10,945 - 
86,460 86,460 - 
21,609 21,609 -

119,014 119,014 -

- 119,488 - 
- 63,676 - 
- 12,148 - 

(271,606) (513,771) - 
83,753 (22,950) - 

(11,411) (151,941) - 
173,969 198,361 -

(25,295) (294,989) -

(26) (54,068) - 
- 70,573 - 

305 6,309 589
279 22,814 589

(1,317) 109,486 4,707
79,344 1,289,084 116,856
78,027$ 1,398,570$ 121,563$

Continued on next page
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS-(Continued)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Water and Storm
Sewer Water Airport

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
  CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
  Operating income (loss) 151,211$ 52,730$ 37,751$
  Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
    to net cash provided (used) by operating activities-
    Depreciation 103,772 7,731 50,681
    Other receipts (payments) (22,106) 822 (9,676)
    Non-airline terminal revenue distribution - - (14,808)
    Change in assets and liabilities:
      (Increase) decrease in receivables 921 (1,442) (3,600)
      (Increase) decrease in due from other governmental agencies (80) (18) (271)
      Decrease in inventories 28 - - 
      Decrease in prepaid insurance 1 - - 
      Decrease in net pension asset 3,885 643 1,893
      (Increase) in deferred outflows of resources for pensions (32) (5) (15)
      Decrease in other postemployment benefit assets 303 58 130
      Increase in accounts payable 2,015 521 2,205
      Increase in claims payable 42 - - 
      Increase in due to participants - - - 
      Increase in deposits and retainage payable - - 70
      Increase in due to component unit - - 10
      Increase in net pension liability 3,189 572 1,944
      (Decrease) in deferred inflows of resources for pension (8,082) (1,376) (4,267)
      Increase in compensated absences payable 231 15 366
      Increase in net OPEB liability - - -
        Total adjustments 84,087 7,521 24,662
    Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 235,298$ 60,251$ 62,413$
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
  Donated assets 26,107$ -$ -$
  Proceeds from refunding bonds 493,537 36,220 43,295
  Payment to refunded bond escrow agent (493,537) (36,220) (43,295)
    Net noncash investing, capital and 
      financing activities 26,107$ -$ -$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Business-type Activities - 
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Governmental
 Enterprise Funds Activities - 

Public Internal Service
Transit Total Funds

(133,886)$ 107,806$ 4,386$

37,659 199,843 5 
414 (30,546) - 

- (14,808) - 

(89) (4,210) (3)
(535) (904) 226
132 160 - 

- 1 - 
1,982 8,403 164

(17) (69) (1)
412 903 - 
938 5,679 254

- 42 2,371
- - (3,093)
- 70 - 
- 10 - 

1,586 7,291 132
(4,088) (17,813) (339)

177 789 5 
- - 11

38,571 154,841 (268)
(95,315)$ 262,647$ 4,118$

-$ 26,107$ -$
- 573,052 - 
- (573,052) -

-$ 26,107$ -$
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Firefighters' Employee
Retirement Benefit -

Pension Other Employee
Trust Benefit Trust

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 5,516$ 18,349$
Receivables:
  Employer contributions 297 - 
  Member contributions 297 - 
  Interest and dividends 485 44
         Total receivables 1,079 44
Investments:
  Equity securities - stocks 115,579 - 
  Fixed income securities - bonds 75,810 - 
  Mutual funds 277,539 53,261
        Total investments 468,928 53,261
Capital assets, at cost, net of accumulated depreciation
  of $409 158 -
         Total assets 475,681 71,654
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 561 11
NET POSITION
Restricted for pensions 475,120$
Held in trust for other postemployment benefits 71,643$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Firefighters' Employee
Retirement Benefit -

Pension Other Employee
Trust Benefit Trust

ADDITIONS:
  Contributions-
    Member 8,991$ 9,068$
    Employer 8,694 12,806
    Other - 189
         Total contributions 17,685 22,063
  Investment income -
    Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of investments (542) (2,987)
    Interest 2,443 2,433
    Dividends 3,039 -

4,940 (554)
    Investment expense 2,645 224
         Net investment income 2,295 (778)
         Total additions 19,980 21,285
DEDUCTIONS:
  Benefits 28,333 16,397
  Refunds 416 - 
  Insurance premiums - 6,759
  Administration 657 822
  Depreciation 29 -
         Total deductions 29,435 23,978
         Change in net position (9,455) (2,693)
Net position - beginning 484,575 74,336
Net position - ending 475,120$ 71,643$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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75
Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) Loan  
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(9) Pensions
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Year ended June 30:
2017 (5,058)$    
2018 (5,058) 
2019 (5,056) 
2020 3,397 
2021 203 
Thereafter 446 

(11,126)$    

168566-CARF-4WEB.pdf   125 1/24/2017   4:54:28 PM



168566-CARF-4WEB.pdf   126 1/24/2017   4:54:28 PM



168566-CARF-4WEB.pdf   127 1/24/2017   4:54:28 PM



168566-CARF-4WEB.pdf   128 1/24/2017   4:54:28 PM



168566-CARF-4WEB.pdf   129 1/24/2017   4:54:28 PM



168566-CARF-4WEB.pdf   130 1/24/2017   4:54:28 PM



168566-CARF-4WEB.pdf   131 1/24/2017   4:54:28 PM



168566-CARF-4WEB.pdf   132 1/24/2017   4:54:28 PM



168566-CARF-4WEB.pdf   133 1/24/2017   4:54:28 PM



168566-CARF-4WEB.pdf   134 1/24/2017   4:54:28 PM



168566-CARF-4WEB.pdf   135 1/24/2017   4:54:28 PM



168566-CARF-4WEB.pdf   136 1/24/2017   4:54:28 PM



168566-CARF-4WEB.pdf   137 1/24/2017   4:54:28 PM



168566-CARF-4WEB.pdf   138 1/24/2017   4:54:28 PM



168566-CARF-4WEB.pdf   139 1/24/2017   4:54:28 PM



168566-CARF-4WEB.pdf   140 1/24/2017   4:54:28 PM



FINANCIAL SECTION – REQUIRED SUPPLEM
ENTARY INFORM

ATION,  
COM

BINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEM
ENTS AND SCHEDULES

Photo by valerie lovelace, City of Charlotte Employee
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City of Charlotte, North Carolina
Local Government Employees' Retirement System
Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset)
Last Three Fiscal Years *
(Dollar Amounts In Thousands)

2014 2015 2016
Charlotte's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) (%) 5.89290% (5.88149%) 5.89461%

Charlotte's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) ($) 71,032$ (32,461)$ 26,455$

Charlotte's covered-employee payroll 327,094$ 338,026$ 350,856$

Charlotte's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a 
percentage of its covered-employee payroll 21.72% ( 9.60%) 7.54%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability** 94.35% 102.64% 94.35%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending June 30.

**  This will be the same percentage for all participant employers in the LGERS plan.  
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(Dollar Amounts In Thousands)

2014 2015 2016
Contractually required contribution 23,348$ 24,288$ 23,959$

Contributions in relation to the contractually 
required contribution 23,348 24,288 23,959
Contribution deficiency (excess) -$ -$ -$

Charlotte's covered-employee payroll 327,094$ 338,026$ 350,856$

Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 7.14% 7.19% 6.83%

City of Charlotte, North Carolina

City of Charlotte's Contributions
Last Three Fiscal Years 

Local Government Employees' Retirement System

168566-CARF-4WEB.pdf   145 1/24/2017   4:54:29 PM



City of Charlotte, North Carolina
Charlotte Firefighters' Retirement System
Schedule of Changes in the System's Net Pension Liability
(Dollar Amounts In Thousands)

Valuation Date July 1, 2014 July 1, 2015
Measurement Date July 1, 2014 July 1, 2015
Reporting Date June 30, 2015 June 30, 2016

Total Pension Liability
Service cost 13,967$ 15,049$
Interest 34,249 36,036
Benefit changes - - 
Difference between expected and actual experience - 1,664
Change of assumptions - -
Benefit payments (23,928) (26,406)
Refunds of contributions 67 (69)

Net change in Total Pension Liability 24,355 26,274
Total Pension Liability - Beginning 453,858 478,213
Total Pension Liability - Ending (a) 478,213$ 504,487$

Plan Net Position
Contributions - employer 8,348$ 8,589$
Contributions - member 8,723 9,138
Net investment income 73,559 20,373
Benefit payments (23,928) (26,406)
Administrative expense (691) (625)
Refunds of contributions 67 (69)
Other - -

Net change in Plan Net Position 66,078 11,000
Plan Net Position - Beginning 407,497 473,575
Plan Net Position - Ending (b) 473,575$ 484,575$

Net Pension Liability - Ending (a) - (b) 4,638$ 19,912$

Plan net position as a percentage of total pension liability 99.03% 96.05%

Covered employee payroll 65,992$ 67,897$

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered employee payroll 7.03% 29.33%

168566-CARF-4WEB.pdf   146 1/24/2017   4:54:29 PM



C
ity

 o
f C

ha
rlo

tte
, N

or
th

 C
ar

ol
in

a
C

ha
rlo

tte
 F

ire
fi g

ht
er

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t S
ys

te
m

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f E

m
pl

o y
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
(D

ol
la

r A
m

ou
nt

s 
In

 T
ho

us
an

ds
)

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

A
ct

ua
ria

lly
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n

6,
64

0
$ 

   
   

   
6,

84
6

$ 
   

   
   

6,
91

8
$

6,
70

3
$ 

   
   

   
7,

44
0

$
8,

13
1

$ 
   

   
   

8,
40

9
$

9,
21

4
$ 

   
   

   
10

,8
49

$ 
   

 
11

,4
54

$ 
   

   
 

A
ct

ua
l e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

6,
22

9
6,

57
4

6,
91

8
7,

34
1

7,
44

0
7,

67
0

7,
72

0
8,

10
0

8,
34

8
8,

58
9

A
nn

ua
l c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
de

fic
ie

nc
y 

(e
xc

es
s)

41
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
27

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$

(6
38

)
$

-
$

46
1

$
68

9
$ 

   
   

   
1,

11
4

$ 
   

   
   

2,
50

1
$ 

   
   

2,
86

5
$ 

   
   

   

C
ov

er
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 p

ay
ro

ll
49

,2
41

$ 
   

   
 

51
,9

68
$ 

   
   

 
54

,6
88

$
58

,0
32

$ 
   

   
 

58
,8

14
$

60
,6

32
$ 

   
   

 
61

,0
28

$
64

,0
32

$ 
   

   
 

65
,9

92
$

67
,8

97
$ 

   
   

 

A
ct

ua
l c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f c
ov

er
ed

 
em

pl
oy

ee
 p

ay
ro

ll
12

.6
5%

12
.6

5%
12

.6
5%

12
.6

5%
12

.6
5%

12
.6

5%
12

.6
5%

12
.6

5%
12

.6
5%

12
.6

5%

A
ct

ua
ria

ll y
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s 

ar
e 

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 a

s 
of

 J
ul

y 
1,

 tw
o 

ye
ar

s 
pr

io
r t

o 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

fis
ca

l y
ea

r i
n 

w
hi

ch
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 a

re
 re

po
rte

d.
M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 u

se
d 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
ra

te
s 

fo
r t

he
 m

os
t r

ec
en

t y
ea

r i
n 

th
e 

sc
he

du
le

:

A
ct

ua
ria

l c
os

t m
et

ho
d

E
nt

r y
 A

ge
A

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

m
et

ho
d

Le
ve

l p
er

ce
nt

 o
pe

n
R

em
ai

ni
n g

 a
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
pe

rio
d

30
 y

ea
rs

A
ss

et
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

m
et

ho
d

5-
ye

ar
 S

m
oo

th
ed

 M
ar

ke
t

In
fla

tio
n

3.
25

%
S

al
ar

y 
in

cr
ea

se
s

4.
25

 –
 1

1.
25

%
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 in
fla

tio
n

In
ve

st
m

en
t r

at
e 

of
 re

tu
rn

7.
75

%
, n

et
 o

f p
en

si
on

 p
la

n 
in

ve
st

m
en

t e
xp

en
se

, i
nc

lu
di

n g
 in

fla
tio

n

16
85

66
-C

A
RF

-4
W

EB
.p

df
   

14
7

1/
24

/2
01

7 
  4

:5
4:

29
 P

M



City of Charlotte, North Carolina
Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance
Schedule of Funding Progress
June 30, 2016
(Dollar Amounts In Thousands)

Actuarial 
Valuation Date

Actuarial Value 
of Assets (a)

Actuarial Accrued 
Liability (AAL) - 
Projected Unit 

Credit (b)
Unfunded AAL 
(UAAL) (b - a)

Funded 
Ratio (a/b)

Covered 
Payroll (c)

UAAL as a % 
of Covered 
Payroll ((b - 

a)/c)

12/31/2009 -$ 58,656$ 58,656$ - % 105,765$    55.46%
12/31/2010 - 54,478 54,478 - 106,419 51.19
12/31/2011 - 58,552 58,552 - 110,146 53.16
12/31/2012 - 63,562 63,562 - 116,466 54.58
12/31/2013 - 66,152 66,152 - 115,241 57.40
12/31/2014 - 70,009 70,009 - 115,243 60.75
12/31/2015 - 108,318 108,318 - 126,473 85.65

The information presented in the previous schedules was determined as part of the actuarial valuation.
Methods and assumptions used include:

Actuarial valuation date 12/31/2015
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Amortization method Level dollar closed
Remaining amortization period 15 years
Asset valuation method Market value
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 3.57%
Projected salary increases 3.50 to 7.35%
Includes inflation at 3.00%
Cost of living adjustments None
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds from specific revenue sources (other than 
funding for major capital projects) that are restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Convention Center Tax Fund – Accounts for room occupancy and prepared food and beverage tax
revenues to be used for convention and tourism purposes, including debt service, maintenance and
operation of convention center facilities, and promotion of tourism.

Tourism Fund – Accounts for room occupancy and other tax revenues to be used for tourism purposes.

Hall of Fame Tax Fund – Accounts for room occupancy tax and private contribution revenues to be used
for the NASCAR Hall of Fame.

Municipal Services District Fund – Accounts for property tax on property within designated Municipal
Services Districts to be used to enhance economic vitality and quality of life within the districts.

Public Safety and Other Grants Fund – Accounts for federal and state grants to be used for public
safety, including police, fire and emergency management, and other governmental-type activities.

Neighborhood Development Fund – Accounts for federal grants to be used for neighborhood activities
which develop viable urban communities providing adequate housing and economic opportunities,
principally for persons of low and moderate income.

Employment and Training Fund – Accounts for federal grants to be used for activities providing
comprehensive employment and training services to enable individuals to secure and retain employment
at their maximum capacity.

Stimulus Grants Fund – Accounts for American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) grants to be
used for governmental-type activities.

State Street Aid Fund – Accounts for motor fuel taxes distributed by the State on the basis of local street
mileage and population to be used for maintenance, repair and construction of streets and highways.

Emergency Telephone System Fund – Accounts for revenues remitted by the NC 911 Board from
service charges imposed on voice communications service connections to be used for the operation and
enhancement of the 911 system.

Permanent Fund

A permanent fund is used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings, not 
principal, may be used.

Perpetual Care Fund – Accounts for monies held by the City for cemetery maintenance.
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Special Revenue
Municipal Public Safety

Convention Hall of Services and Other Neighborhood
Center Tax Tourism Fame Tax District Grants Development

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 70,258$  59,832$  18,560$  370$  11,736$  2,606$
Receivables, net:
 Property taxes - - - 107 - -
 Accounts - 4 - 187 - -
 Other - 185 - - 85 -
    Total receivables - 189 - 294 85 -
Due from other governmental agencies 4,263 1,305 1,175 8 5,319 3,198
Notes receivable - - - - - 37,237
Prepaid expenditures - - - - - -

 Total assets 74,521$  61,326$  19,735$  672$  17,140$  43,041$  

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable -$ 111$  -$ 81$  1,111$  432$  
Deposits and retainage payable - - - - - 151
Due to other funds - - - 190 - -
Due to component unit 100 - 498 - - -
Unearned revenues - - - - 691 168

 Total liabilities 100 111 498 271 1,802 751

Deferred inflows of resources:
Unavailable revenues - 4 - 294 85 -

Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
 Perpetual care - - - - - -
  Long-term notes receivable - - - - - 37,237
Restricted:
 Public safety - - - - - -
 Cultural and recreation 74,421 61,211 19,237 - 12,522 -
 Community planning and development - - - 107 2,347 5,053
 Streets and highways - - - - 384 -
 Total fund balances 74,421 61,211 19,237 107 15,253 42,290
 Total liabilities and fund balances 74,521$  61,326$  19,735$  672$  17,140$  43,041$  
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Permanent
Funds Fund Total

State Emergency Nonmajor
Employment Street Telephone Perpetual Governmental
and Training Aid System Total Care Funds

-$ 12,482$  3,043$    178,887$ 3,111$   181,998$  

- - - 107 - 107
- - - 191 - 191
- 12 - 282 - 282
- 12 - 580 - 580

709 564 257 16,798 - 16,798
- - - 37,237 - 37,237
- - 90 90 - 90

709$  13,058$  3,390$  233,592$ 3,111$    236,703$  

709$  2,427$  108$  4,979$  -$ 4,979$
- 194 - 345 - 345
- - - 190 - 190
- - - 598 - 598
- - - 859 - 859

709 2,621 108 6,971 - 6,971

- 12 - 395 - 395

- - - - 3,111 3,111
- - - 37,237 - 37,237

- - 3,282 3,282 - 3,282
- - - 167,391 - 167,391
- - - 7,507 - 7,507
- 10,425 - 10,809 - 10,809
- 10,425 3,282 226,226 3,111 229,337

709$  13,058$  3,390$  233,592$ 3,111$    236,703$  
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Special Revenue
Municipal Public Safety

Convention Hall of Services and Other Neighborhood
Center Tax Tourism Fame Tax District Grants Development

REVENUES:
  Property taxes -$ -$ -$ 4,883$ -$ -$
  Other taxes 50,055 14,016 13,315 - - -
  Intergovernmental - 2,948 - - 11,298 11,309
  Licenses, fees and fines - - - - - - 
  Investment earnings 372 320 117 (2) 23 10
  Miscellaneous 1,000 3,667 - - 660 1,737
        Total revenues 51,427 20,951 13,432 4,881 11,981 13,056
EXPENDITURES:
  Current-
    Public safety - - - - 9,012 - 
    General administration - - - - - 1,174
    Support services - - - - - -
    Streets and highways - - - - 2,473 - 
    Culture and recreation 20,016 1,327 1,248 - - -
    Community planning and
        development - - - 4,145 148 15,539
        Total expenditures 20,016 1,327 1,248 4,145 11,633 16,713
        Excess (deficiency) of revenues
            over (under) expenditures 31,411 19,624 12,184 736 348 (3,657)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
  Sales of capital assets - - - - - - 
  Transfers in-
    General - 646 - - 345 - 
    Debt service - 119 - - - - 
    Capital projects - 8,699 - - - 502
        Total transfers in - 9,464 - - 345 502
  Transfers out-
    General (3,143) - - - - - 
    Debt service (22,825) (21,832) (9,290) - - - 
    Capital projects - (5,918) - - - -
        Total transfers out (25,968) (27,750) (9,290) - - -
        Total other financing
            sources (uses) (25,968) (18,286) (9,290) - 345 502
        Net change in fund balances 5,443 1,338 2,894 736 693 (3,155)
Fund balances - beginning 68,978 59,873 16,343 (629) 14,560 45,445
Fund balances - ending 74,421$ 61,211$ 19,237$ 107$ 15,253$ 42,290$
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Permanent
Funds Fund Total

State Emergency Nonmajor
Employment Stimulus Street Telephone Perpetual Governmental
and Training Grants Aid System Total Care Funds

-$ -$ -$ -$ 4,883$ -$ 4,883$
- - - - 77,386 - 77,386

7,664 21 20,400 2,302 55,942 - 55,942
- - 828 - 828 - 828
- - 75 14 929 13 942
- - - - 7,064 - 7,064

7,664 21 21,303 2,316 147,032 13 147,045

- - - 2,991 12,003 - 12,003
645 - - - 1,819 - 1,819

- 21 - - 21 - 21
- - 27,592 - 30,065 - 30,065
- - - - 22,591 - 22,591

7,019 - - - 26,851 - 26,851
7,664 21 27,592 2,991 93,350 - 93,350

- - (6,289) (675) 53,682 13 53,695

- - 50 - 50 - 50
- 

- - 4,261 - 5,252 - 5,252
- - - - 119 - 119
- - - - 9,201 - 9,201
- - 4,261 - 14,572 - 14,572

- - - - (3,143) (13) (3,156)
- - (1,602) - (55,549) - (55,549)
- - - - (5,918) - (5,918)
- - (1,602) - (64,610) (13) (64,623)

- - 2,709 - (49,988) (13) (50,001)
- - (3,580) (675) 3,694 - 3,694
- - 14,005 3,957 222,532 3,111 225,643
-$ -$ 10,425$ 3,282$ 226,226$ 3,111$ 229,337$
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Variance- Variance-
Positive Positive

Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
  Property taxes -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
  Other taxes 45,738 50,055 4,317 12,476 14,016 1,540
  Intergovernmental - - - 2,948 2,948 - 
  Licenses, fees and fines - - - - - - 
  Investment earnings 238 372 134 289 320 31
  Miscellaneous 1,000 1,000 - 1,039 3,667 2,628
       Total revenues 46,976 51,427 4,451 16,752 20,951 4,199
EXPENDITURES:
  Current- 
    Streets and highways - - - - - - 
    Culture and recreation 20,091 20,016 75 1,926 1,327 599
    Community planning and development - - - - - -
       Total expenditures 20,091 20,016 75 1,926 1,327 599
       Excess (deficiency) of revenues
         over (under) expenditures 26,885 31,411 4,526 14,826 19,624 4,798
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
  Sales of capital assets - - - - - - 
  Transfers in - - - 9,924 9,464 (460)
  Transfers out (27,254) (25,968) 1,286 (30,894) (27,750) 3,144
       Total other financing
         sources (uses) (27,254) (25,968) 1,286 (20,970) (18,286) 2,684
       Revenues and other sources over
         (under) expenditures and other uses (369)$ 5,443 5,812$ (6,144)$ 1,338 7,482$
RECONCILIATION TO GAAP BASIS:
  Current year encumbrances - -
       Net change in fund balances 5,443 1,338
Fund balances - beginning (annually
  budgeted funds) 68,978 59,873
Fund balances - ending (annually
  budgeted funds) 74,421$ 61,211$
  Project funds:
    Fund balances - beginning
      Net change in fund balances
    Fund balances - ending
Fund balances - ending

Convention Center Tax Tourism
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Variance- Variance- Variance-
Positive Positive Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)  Budget  Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative)

-$ -$ -$ 4,644$ 4,883$ 239$ -$ -$ -$
11,921 13,315 1,394 - - - - - - 

- - - - - - 20,587 20,400 (187)
- - - - - - 650 828 178

102 117 15 - (2) (2) 80 75 (5) 
- - - - - - - - -

12,023 13,432 1,409 4,644 4,881 237 21,317 21,303 (14)

- - - - - - 37,720 36,627 1,093
3,800 1,248 2,552 - - - - - - 

- - - 4,699 4,145 554 - - -
3,800 1,248 2,552 4,699 4,145 554 37,720 36,627 1,093

8,223 12,184 3,961 (55) 736 791 (16,403) (15,324) 1,079

- - - - - - - 50 50
- - - - - - 4,261 4,261 - 

(9,621) (9,290) 331 - - - (1,602) (1,602) -

(9,621) (9,290) 331 - - - 2,659 2,709 50

(1,398)$ 2,894 4,292$ (55)$ 736 791$ (13,744)$ (12,615) 1,129$

- - 9,035
2,894 736 (3,580)

16,343 (629) 14,005

19,237$ 107$ 10,425$

Continued on next page

Municipal Services District State Street AidHall of Fame Tax
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)-(Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Variance-
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
  Property taxes 4,644$ 4,883$ 239$
  Other taxes 70,135 77,386 7,251
  Intergovernmental 23,535 23,348 (187)
  Licenses, fees and fines 650 828 178
  Investment earnings 709 882 173
  Miscellaneous 2,039 4,667 2,628
       Total revenues 101,712 111,994 10,282
EXPENDITURES:
  Current- 
    Streets and highways 37,720 36,627 1,093
    Culture and recreation 25,817 22,591 3,226
    Community planning and development 4,699 4,145 554
       Total expenditures 68,236 63,363 4,873
       Excess (deficiency) of revenues
         over (under) expenditures 33,476 48,631 15,155
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
  Sales of capital assets - 50 50
  Transfers in 14,185 13,725 (460)
  Transfers out (69,371) (64,610) 4,761
       Total other financing
         sources (uses) (55,186) (50,835) 4,351
       Revenues and other sources over
         (under) expenditures and other uses (21,710)$ (2,204) 19,506$
RECONCILIATION TO GAAP BASIS:
  Current year encumbrances 9,035
       Net change in fund balances 6,831
Fund balances - beginning (annually
  budgeted funds) 158,570
Fund balances - ending (annually
  budgeted funds) 165,401
  Project funds:
    Fund balances - beginning 63,962
      Net change in fund balances (3,137)
    Fund balances - ending 60,825
Fund balances - ending 226,226$

Total
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
PUBLIC SAFETY AND OTHER GRANTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED WITH AUTHORIZATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Current Prior Unexpended
Authorizations Year Years Total Authorizations

Federal:
High Intensity Drug Trafficking Areas 333$  81$  137$  218$  115$  
Fair Housing Assistance 554 36 262 298 256
Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing 4,458 217 2,924 3,141 1,317
Justice Assistance 296 209 13 222 74
Forensic DNA Backlog Reduction 1,165 202 556 758 407

Federal pass through:
Public Health and Social Services Emergency 632 - 593 593 39
Homeland Security 11,200 3,508 5,427 8,935 2,265
Emergency Management Performance 311 69 123 192 119
Justice Assistance 2,641 700 1,750 2,450 191
Highway Planning and Construction 8,755 1,948 3,355 5,303 3,452
Metropolitan Planning Grants 1,249 471 601 1,072 177
Highway Safety 1,807 385 1,254 1,639 168
Violence against Women 121 57 - 57 64

199 21 - 21 178
Juvenile Justice and Discretionary Prevention 98 67 - 67 31

13 - - - 13
State:

Juvenile Offender Program 215 70 145 215 -
Metropolitan Planning Grants 186 47 52 99 87
State Medical Assistance 12 8 4 12 -

Asset forfeiture 5,989 1,338 3,041 4,379 1,610
Other public safety programs 13,004 2,087 4,950 7,037 5,967
Other community planning and development programs 1,397 112 314 426 971
Other streets and highways programs 75 - - - 75
 Total public safety grants 54,710$  11,633$ 25,501$ 37,134$ 17,576$  

Expenditures

 Criminal and Juvenile Justice and Mental Health 
 Collaboration Program

 Interagency Hazardous Materials Public Sector 
       Training and Planning Grants
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED WITH AUTHORIZATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Current Prior Unexpended
Authorizations Year Years Total Authorizations

Federal:
Community Development Block Grants 21,761$ 5,893$ 11,186$ 17,079$ 4,682$
Emergency Shelter 1,162 385 618 1,003 159
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 10,823 5,891 4,879 10,770 53
Housing Opportunities For Persons With AIDS 4,560 1,400 1,926 3,326 1,234
Continuum of Care Program 95 48 47 95 - 
Lead-Based Paint Hazard Control 2,479 833 1,232 2,065 414

Federal pass through:
Envision Charlotte 30 6 - 6 24

State:
One NC Grant 6,909 1,000 - 1,000 5,909
Main Street Solutions 100 - - - 100

Local:
Other 7,967 2,519 6,031 8,550 (583)
Total neighborhood development 55,886$ 17,975 25,919$ 43,894$ 11,992$

Contra expense for issuance of long-term loans receivable (1,262)
16,713$ 

** Use the same name we use on Single Audit
** Order same as on Single Audit (Fed/Pass thru and location)

Expenditures
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED WITH AUTHORIZATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Current Prior Unexpended
Authorizations Year Year Total Authorizations

Workforce Investment Act 24,834$ 7,664$ 14,203$ 21,867$ 2,967$

Expenditures
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
STIMULUS GRANTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED WITH AUTHORIZATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Current Prior Unexpended
Authorizations Year Years Total Authorizations

Federal:
Broadband Technology Opportunities (BTOP) 15,670$ 21$ 15,649$ 15,670$ -$

Expenditures
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SYSTEM FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED WITH AUTHORIZATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Current Prior Unexpended
Authorizations Year Year Total Authorizations

Implemental functions 590$ 253$ 337$ 590$ -$
Phone and furniture 6,152 1,319 2,382 3,701 2,451
Software 2,309 798 1,436 2,234 75
Hardware 1,061 744 154 898 163
Training 57 36 21 57 -
  Total expenditures 10,169$ 3,150 4,330$ 7,480$ 2,689$

(159)
2,991$ 

Expenditures

Ineligible 911 expenditures reported in 
Emergency Telephone System Fund

Amounts reported on the Emergency Telephone System 
Fund Schedule of Expenditures Compared with 
Authorizations are different from the PSAP Revenue-
Expenditure Report because:
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA

DEBT SERVICE FUND

The Debt Service fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources and the payment of principal, 
interest and related costs for all long-term debt other than debt issued for and serviced by business-type 
activities.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

The Capital Projects fund accounts for financial resources, primarily bond proceeds and property taxes, 
used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of capital assets.
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Variance-
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
  Property tax 84,097$ 86,539$ 2,442$
  Other taxes- 
      Sales tax 16,540 17,987 1,447
      Heavy equipment - 144 144
        Total other 16,540 18,131 1,591
  Intergovernmental- 
    Mecklenburg County: 
      ABC Board contribution 816 1,158 342
  Licenses, fees and fines 59 58 (1)
  Investment earnings 1,122 1,275 153
  Miscellaneous 224 160 (64)
        Total revenues 102,858 107,321 4,463
EXPENDITURES:
  Bonds-
    Principal retirement 40,063 38,363 1,700
    Interest 28,960 28,277 683
  Installment purchases-
    Principal retirement 75,987 73,670 2,317
    Interest 39,839 35,164 4,675
  Fiscal agents fees 3,700 2,384 1,316
  Other 1,366 732 634
        Total expenditures 189,915 178,590 11,325
        Revenues (under) expenditures (87,057) (71,269) 15,788
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)-(Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Variance-
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
  Installment purchases issued 750$ 185$ (565)$
  Refunding debt issued 33,195 33,010 (185)
  Premium on debt issuance 5,906 5,906 - 
  Payment to refunded bond escrow agent (38,650) (38,650) - 
  Transfers in-
    General 16,998 16,998 - 
    Special revenue:
      Convention Center tax 23,767 22,826 (941)
      Tourism 12,654 12,654 - 
      Cultural facilities 12,321 9,177 (3,144)
      Hall of Fame 9,621 9,290 (331)
      State street aid 1,602 1,602 - 
    Capital Projects 20,626 20,626 -
        Total transfers in 97,589 93,173 (4,416)
  Transfers out-
    General 112 112 - 
    Special revenue - Cultural facilities 320 119 201
    Capital Projects 31,110 31,110 -
        Total transfers out 31,542 31,341 201
        Total other financing sources (uses) 67,248 62,283 (4,965)
        Net change in fund balance (19,809)$ (8,986) 10,823$
Fund balance - beginning 295,124
Fund balance - ending 286,138$ 
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES COMPARED WITH AUTHORIZATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Current Prior
Authorizations Year Years Total

Capital equipment 25,920$ 18,022$ -$ 18,022$
Housing 11,798 626 10,848 11,474
Affordable housing 133,499 7,298 101,821 109,119
Innovative housing 90,919 2,351 85,189 87,540
Neighborhood improvements 117,597 4,181 88,208 92,389
Area plans 12,537 621 4,864 5,485
Street and road infrastructure 429,624 30,207 233,535 263,742
Non-street transportation insfrastructure 100,562 8,057 75,147 83,204
Traffic control 56,480 4,297 38,033 42,330
Pedestrian safety 130,780 7,469 100,261 107,730
Transportation partnerships 10,179 500 5,561 6,061
Transit corridor development 199,685 7,371 33,660 41,031
Economic development corridors 86,734 8,106 49,643 57,749
Business corridors 28,724 749 22,972 23,721
Environmental services program 27,903 854 25,386 26,240
Tree program 16,430 2,999 10,080 13,079
Capacity for growth sewer 215 203 - 203
New facilities 332,897 7,136 239,033 246,169
Facility renovations 158,086 32,290 57,696 89,986
Facilities maintenance 95,654 4,990 85,019 90,009
Technology 62,205 5,924 34,565 40,489
Other equipment 3,205 69 2,372 2,441
  Total capital projects 2,131,633$ 154,320 1,303,893$ 1,458,213$

Contra expense for issuance of long-term loans receivable (3,803)
150,517$

Expenditures
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Unencumbered
Unexpended Encumbrances Authorizations

Authorizations June 30, 2016 June 30, 2016
7,898$ 4,527$ 3,371$

324 174 150
24,380 4,158 20,222
3,379 470 2,909

25,208 3,251 21,957
7,052 586 6,466

165,882 35,440 130,442
17,358 6,075 11,283
14,150 2,895 11,255
23,050 1,643 21,407
4,118 1,583 2,535

158,654 11,011 147,643
28,985 2,417 26,568
5,003 386 4,617
1,663 423 1,240
3,351 144 3,207

12 - 12
86,728 4,636 82,092
68,100 19,026 49,074
5,645 2,029 3,616

21,716 3,430 18,286
764 141 623

673,420$ 104,445$ 568,975$
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that charge a fee for service to customers similar to 
private business enterprises.  The City has four enterprise operations.

Water and Sewer Fund – Accounts for the operation of Charlotte Water, provider of water and
wastewater services.

Storm Water Fund – Accounts for the operation of Charlotte Storm Water Services, administrator of
storm water programs and policies.

Airport Fund – Accounts for the operation of the Charlotte Douglas International Airport.

Public Transit Fund – Accounts for the operation of Charlotte Area Transit System, provider of
community-wide public transportation services.

168566-CARF-4WEB.pdf   169 1/24/2017   4:54:30 PM



168566-CARF-4WEB.pdf   170 1/24/2017   4:54:30 PM



CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
WATER AND SEWER OPERATING FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Variance-
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
  Water sales 121,422$ 139,693$ 18,271$
  Sewer services fees 169,339 174,088 4,749
  Availability fees 35,887 37,113 1,226
  Capacity fees 10,000 19,157 9,157
  Other 8,752 11,480 2,728
  Investment earnings 695 1,132 437
      Total revenues 346,095 382,663 36,568
EXPENDITURES:
  Water supply and treatment 14,523 12,774 1,749
  Sewer system and treatment 46,884 45,852 1,032
  Administration and engineering 69,388 69,387 1
      Total expenditures 130,795 128,013 2,782
      Revenues over expenditures 215,300 254,650 39,350
TRANSFERS OUT:
  Water and Sewer Debt Service 147,541 145,207 2,334
  Water and Sewer Capital Projects 65,185 65,185 -
      Total transfers out 212,726 210,392 2,334
       Revenues over expenditures
        and transfers 2,574$ 44,258$ 41,684$
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
WATER AND SEWER DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Variance-
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
  Investment earnings 1$ 163$ 162$
  Installment purchases issued 27 27 - 
  Refunding bonds issued 459,585 459,585 - 
  Premium on debt issuance 66,198 66,148 (50)
  Proceeds from commercial paper issued 136 136 -
      Total revenues 525,947 526,059 112
EXPENDITURES:
  Bonds-
    Principal retirement 76,163 75,828 335
    Interest 70,918 70,246 672
  Other financing agreements-
    Principal retirement 3,762 3,753 9 
    Interest 2,232 701 1,531
    Payment to refunded bond escrow agent 493,537 493,537 - 
  Bond issue expense 36,208 36,188 20
  Other 2,153 1,046 1,107
      Total expenditures 684,973 681,299 3,674
      Revenues (under) expenditures (159,026) (155,240) 3,786
TRANSFERS IN:
    Water and Sewer Operating 147,541 145,207 (2,334)
    Water and Sewer Capital Projects 284 354 70
      Total transfers in 147,825 145,561 (2,264)
TRANSFERS OUT:
    Water and Sewer Operating - - - 
    Water and Sewer Capital Projects - - -
      Total transfers out - - -
        Total other financing sources 147,825 145,561 (2,264)
      Revenues and transfers over
        expenditures (11,201)$ (9,679)$ 1,522$
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
WATER AND SEWER FUND
SCHEDULE OF RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP BASIS)
TO FULL ACCRUAL BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Revenues and transfers over (under)
  expenditures and transfers:
    Operating Fund 44,258$
    Debt Service Fund (9,679)
Investment earnings in the
  Capital Projects Fund 473
Current year encumbrances 8,342
Net pension asset (3,885)
Deferred outflows of resources for pensions 32
Net pension liability (3,189)
Deferred inflows of resources for pensions 8,082
Bond proceeds 33,789
Depreciation (103,772)
Debt principal retirement 79,583
Premium on debt issuance (66,148)
Amortization of deferred charges (2,173)
Amortization of premium 6,376
Capitalized interest 21,610
Capital contributions 26,270
Other (3,515)
Net transfers to (from) Water and Sewer  
  Capital Projects Fund:
    Water and Sewer Operating 65,185
    Water and Sewer Debt Service (354)
Change in net position 101,285$

Note:  Pursuant to state law, budgets are adopted on an annual basis
          for Operating and Debt Service Funds.  Budgets for Capital 
          Projects Funds are adopted on a project basis.  
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
WATER AND SEWER CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES COMPARED WITH AUTHORIZATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Current Prior
Authorizations Year Years Total

Water:
  Capacity for growth water 370,236$ 9,579$ 253,453$ 263,032$
  Commitment public projects/Operations water 175,818 8,607 112,976 121,583
  Rehab and replacement water 329,329 19,327 247,788 267,115
  Regulatory requirements water 38,941 1,293 28,520 29,813
  Annexation water 10,200 - 3,390 3,390
Sewer:
  Capacity for growth sewer 669,819 30,315 345,429 375,744
  Commitment public projects/Operations sewer 116,905 6,861 76,070 82,931
  Rehab and replacement sewer 705,311 20,859 576,264 597,123
  Regulatory requirements sewer 109,353 922 67,993 68,915
  Annexation sewer 37,600 3 25,177 25,180
  Service exist resident sewer 3,005 - 2,838 2,838
Technology 3,912 368 - 368
Capital Equipment 12,488 3,933 4,345 8,278
  Total water and sewer
    capital projects 2,582,917$ 102,067$ 1,744,243$ 1,846,310$

Expenditures
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Unencumbered
Unexpended Encumbrances Authorizations

Authorizations June 30, 2016 June 30, 2016

107,204$ 9,425$ 97,779$
54,235 5,449 48,786
62,214 13,188 49,026
9,128 2,374 6,754
6,810 - 6,810

294,075 55,704 238,371
33,974 13,307 20,667

108,188 71,353 36,835
40,438 3,063 37,375
12,420 7 12,413

167 - 167
3,544 240 3,304
4,210 1,439 2,771

736,607$ 175,549$ 561,058$
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
STORM WATER OPERATING FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Variance-
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
  Storm water fees 66,738$ 66,004$ (734)$
  Other - 395 395
  Investment earnings - 116 116
      Total revenues 66,738 66,515 (223)
EXPENDITURES:
  Storm water systems 12,986 9,636 3,350
  Administration 2,136 2,136 -
      Total expenditures 15,122 11,772 3,350
      Revenues over expenditures 51,616 54,743 3,127
TRANSFERS OUT:

Storm Water Capital Projects 43,000 43,000 - 
Storm Water Debt Service 12,177 12,036 141

      Total transfers out 55,177 55,036 141
      Revenues (under) expenditures
        and transfers (3,561)$ (293)$ 2,986$
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
STORM WATER DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Variance-
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
   Premium on debt issuance 4,228$ 4,228$ -$
   Refunding bonds issued 32,355 32,355 -
    Total revenues 36,583 36,583 -
EXPENDITURES:
  Bonds-
    Principal retirement 4,744 4,669 75
    Interest 7,442 7,302 140
  Payment to refunded bond escrow agent 36,220 36,220 - 
  Bond issue expense 324 317 7 
  Other 30 16 14
    Total expenditures 48,760 48,524 236
    Revenues (under) expenditures (12,177) (11,941) 236
TRANSFERS IN:
  Storm Water Operating 12,177 12,036 (141)
    Revenues and transfers over expenditures -$ 95$ 95$
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
STORM WATER FUND
SCHEDULE OF RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP BASIS)
TO FULL ACCRUAL BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Revenues and transfers (under)
  expenditures and transfers:
    Operating Fund (293)$
    Debt Service Fund 95
Capital Projects Fund:
  Charges for services 4,038
  Investment earnings 188
Current year encumbrances 2,025
Net pension asset (643)
Deferred outflows of resources for pensions 5 
Net pension liability (572)
Deferred inflows of resources for pensions 1,376
Depreciation (7,731)
Debt principal retirement 4,669
Premium on debt issuance (4,228)
Amortization of deferred charges (177)
Amortization of premium 1,258
Capitalized interest 7,197
Other 3,507
Net transfers to Storm Water
  Capital Projects Fund:
    Operating Fund 43,000
Change in net position 53,714$

Note:  Pursuant to state law, budgets are adopted on an annual basis
          for Operating and Debt Service Funds.  Budgets for Capital
          Projects Funds are adopted on a project basis.
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
STORM WATER CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES COMPARED WITH AUTHORIZATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Current Prior
Authorizations Year Years Total

Flood control program 263,268$ 28,267$ 189,960$ 218,227$
Stormwater maintenance program 150,370 17,768 109,184 126,952
Stream restoration/mitigation 93,521 2,942 54,254 57,196
Stormwater support for projects 51,288 1,852 37,737 39,589
Minor stormwater programs 16,722 2,114 9,271 11,385
Transit corridor development 2,376 152 15 167
  Total storm water
    capital projects 577,545$ 53,095$ 400,421$ 453,516$ 

Expenditures
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Unencumbered
Unexpended Encumbrances Authorizations

Authorizations June 30, 2016 June 30, 2016

45,041$ 20,389$ 24,652$
23,418 12,073 11,345
36,325 3,611 32,714
11,699 1,147 10,552
5,337 1,992 3,345
2,209 2,208 1

124,029$ 41,420$ 82,609$
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
AIRPORT OPERATING FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

 Variance-
Positive

 Budget  Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
  Terminal area 35,548$ 42,091$ 6,543$
  Airfield 24,584 25,275 691
  Concessions 54,163 48,527 (5,636)
  Rental Car Revenues - 14,111 14,111
  Parking 44,543 51,674 7,131
  Passenger facility charges 25,399 59,171 33,772
  Contract facility charges 5,605 12,273 6,668
  Fixed Base Operator (FBO) 22,159 13,732 (8,427)
  Other 15,272 11,141 (4,131)
  Investment earnings 678 3,558 2,880
    Total revenues 227,951 281,553 53,602
EXPENDITURES:
  Operating 152,520 129,718 22,802
  Nonoperating 31,918 18,525 13,393
    Total expenditures 184,438 148,243 36,195
    Revenues over expenditures 43,513 133,310 89,797
TRANSFERS IN:
  Airport Debt Service 5,335 5,333 (2)
  Airport Capital Projects 13,900 13,900 -
    Total transfers in 19,235 19,233 (2)
TRANSFERS OUT:
  Airport Debt Service 53,801 51,176 2,625
  Airport Capital Projects 107,834 107,834 -
    Total transfers out 161,635 159,010 2,625
    Revenues and transfers (under)
      expenditures and transfers (98,887)$ (6,467)$ 92,420$
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
AIRPORT DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

 Variance-
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
  Proceeds from refunding 43,295$ 43,295$ -$
  Investment earnings 15 125 110
  Proceeds from revenue bonds 186 186 - 
  Other - 16 16
    Total revenues 43,496 43,622 126
EXPENDITURES:
  Bonds-
    Principal retirement 22,385 22,385 - 
    Interest 28,283 26,283 2,000
  Payment to refunded bond escrow agent 43,295 43,295 - 
  Bond issue expense 186 178 8 
  Other 603 513 90
    Total expenditures 94,752 92,654 2,098
    Revenues (under) expenditures (51,256) (49,032) 2,224
TRANSFERS IN:
  Airport Operating 53,801 51,176 (2,625)
TRANSFERS OUT:
  Airport Operating 5,335 5,333 2
    Revenues and transfers (under)
      expenditures and transfers (2,790)$ (3,189)$ (399)$
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
AIRPORT FUND
SCHEDULE OF RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP BASIS)
TO FULL ACCRUAL BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Revenues and transfers over
  expenditures and transfers:
    Operating Fund (6,467)$
    Debt Service Fund (3,189)
Capital Projects Fund:
  Investment earnings 912
Current year encumbrances 9,534
Net pension asset (1,893)
Deferred outflows of resources for pensions 15
Net pension liability (1,944)
Deferred inflows of resources for pensions 4,267
Bond proceeds (186)
Depreciation (50,681)
Debt principal retirement 22,385
Capital outlay 1,724
Amortization of deferred charges (269)
Amortization of premium 1,673
Capitalized interest 6,672
Capital contributions 20,706
Other (12,093)
Net transfers to (from) Airport  
  Capital Projects Fund:
    Airport Operating 93,934
Change in net position 85,100$

Note:  Pursuant to state law, budgets are adopted on an annual basis
          for Operating and Debt Service Funds.  Budgets for Capital 
          Projects Funds are adopted on a project basis.  
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
AIRPORT CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES COMPARED WITH AUTHORIZATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Current Prior
Authorizations Year Years Total

Airfield projects 271,034$ 13,586$ 194,369$ 207,955$
Terminal complex projects 52,185 9,078 7,226 16,304
Cargo development projects 10,843 7,172 1,437 8,609
General aviation projects 11,074 3,146 2,497 5,643
Miscellaneous aviation projects 143,944 3,096 107,122 110,218
Terminal building 157,579 18,451 66,255 84,706
Ground transportation 314,316 13,268 279,566 292,834
Fueling facilities 538 437 - 437
Airport service fees (ASF) 15,744 2,173 2,956 5,129
Land acquisition - non-airfield 20,000 12,615 - 12,615
Included miscellaneous 3,032 248 - 248
Excluded miscellaneous 1,685 616 143 759
Fixed base operator (FBO) 10,663 126 7,036 7,162
Deicing 5,678 - 5,386 5,386
Environmental services program 62,083 696 58,046 58,742
Facilities maintenance 80 - 74 74
Technology 4,958 1,299 - 1,299
   Total airport capital projects 1,085,436$ 86,007$ 732,113$ 818,120$

Expenditures
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Unencumbered
Unexpended Encumbrances Authorizations

Authorizations June 30, 2016 June 30, 2016

63,079$ 46,587$ 16,492$
35,881 34,840 1,041
2,234 2,224 10
5,431 4,393 1,038

33,726 2,154 31,572
72,873 12,080 60,793
21,482 8,641 12,841

101 101 - 
10,615 2,796 7,819
7,385 1,233 6,152
2,784 2,761 23

926 303 623
3,501 123 3,378

292 292 - 
3,341 766 2,575

6 - 6 
3,659 1,748 1,911

267,316$ 121,042$ 146,274$
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
PUBLIC TRANSIT OPERATING FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Variance-
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
  Passenger fares 31,428$ 26,307$ (5,121)$
  Other operating 4,332 6,097 1,765
  Sales tax 74,492 89,617 15,125
  Intergovernmental 11,616 10,945 (671)
  Other 460 461 1 
  Investment earnings 681 352 (329)
    Total revenues 123,009 133,779 10,770
EXPENDITURES:
  Transit operations and maintenance 112,645 112,413 232
  Administration 8,857 8,857 -
    Total expenditures 121,502 121,270 232
    Revenues over expenditures 1,507 12,509 11,002
TRANSFERS IN:
  Public Transit Debt Service 7,317 7,317 - 
  Capital Projects 21,609 21,609 -
    Total transfers in 28,926 28,926 -
TRANSFERS OUT:
  Public Transit Capital Projects 13,447 13,447 - 
  Public Transit Debt Service 30,880 30,880 -
    Total transfers out 44,327 44,327 -
    Revenues and transfers (under) 
      expenditures and transfers (13,894)$ (2,892)$ 11,002$
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
PUBLIC TRANSIT DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Variance-
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
  Grant contributions 215$ -$ (215)$
  Investment earnings - 143 143
    Total revenues 215 143 (72)
EXPENDITURES:
  Installment purchases-
    Principal retirement 4,600 4,600 - 
    Interest 14,872 10,072 4,800
    Other 1,880 1,617 263
      Total expenditures 21,352 16,289 5,063
      Revenues (under) expenditures (21,137) (16,146) 4,991
TRANSFERS IN:
  Public Transit Operating 30,880 30,880 - 
  Public Transit Capital Projects 3,694 3,694 -
      Total transfers in 34,574 34,574 -
TRANSFERS OUT:
  Public Transit Operating 7,317 7,317 - 
  Public Transit Capital Projects 3,992 3,992 -
      Total transfers out 11,309 11,309 -
    Revenues and transfers over
      expenditures and transfers 2,128$ 7,119$ 4,991$
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
PUBLIC TRANSIT FUND
SCHEDULE OF RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP BASIS)
TO FULL ACCRUAL BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Revenues and transfers over
  expenditures and transfers:
    Operating Fund (2,892)$
    Debt Service Fund 7,119
Investment earnings in the
  Capital Projects Fund (97)
Current year encumbrances 2,263
Net pension asset (1,982)
Deferred outflows of resources for pensions 17
Net pension liability (1,586)
Deferred inflows of resources for pensions 4,088
Depreciation (37,659)
Debt principal retirement 4,600
Capital outlay 125
Amortization of deferred charges (29)
Amortization of premium 900
Capitalized interest 2,944
Capital contributions 194,994
Other (10,306)
Net transfers to Public Transit 
  Capital Projects Fund:
    Public Transit Operating 13,447
    Public Transit Debt Service 298
Change in net position 176,244$

Note:  Pursuant to state law, budgets are adopted on an annual basis
           for Operating and Debt Service Funds.  Budgets for Capital
           Projects Funds are adopted on a project basis.
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
PUBLIC TRANSIT CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES COMPARED WITH AUTHORIZATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Current Prior
Authorizations Year Years Total

Transit corridor development 1,711,328$ 284,876$ 994,875$ 1,279,751$
Transit vehicles 160,792 10,262 128,942 139,204
Transit facilities 116,362 1,011 109,180 110,191
Transit maintenance & equipment 33,097 6,317 25,403 31,720
Transit support 18,089 1,537 13,351 14,888
Facilities maintenance 275 - 275 275
  Total public transit
    capital projects 2,039,943$ 304,003$ 1,272,026$ 1,576,029$

Expenditures

168566-CARF-4WEB.pdf   192 1/24/2017   4:54:30 PM



Unencumbered
Unexpended Encumbrances Authorizations

Authorizations June 30, 2016 June 30, 2016

431,577$ 113,877$ 317,700$
21,588 8,464 13,124
6,171 1,040 5,131
1,377 1,219 158
3,201 128 3,073

- - -

463,914$ 124,728$ 339,186$
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal service funds are used to account for centralized services provided to City departments and other 
governmental units and agencies on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Risk Management Fund – Accounts for the general insurance program, claim and loss control
services for the City as well as services provided, on a cost-reimbursement basis to other
governmental units and agencies in Mecklenburg County.

Employee Health and Life Fund – Accounts for funds contributed by the City and employees for
health and life benefits.
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Employee
Risk Health

Management and Life Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
  Cash and cash equivalents 86,820$ 34,743$ 121,563$ 
  Receivables - other 238 48 286
  Due from other governmental agencies 6 2 8
          Total current assets 87,064 34,793 121,857
Capital assets:
  Machinery and equipment 181 - 181
  Less accumulated depreciation 163 - 163
          Total capital assets, net 18 - 18
          Total assets 87,082 34,793 121,875

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension deferrals 1 - 1 
Contributions to pension plan in current fiscal year 115 - 115

116 - 116

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
  Accounts payable 129 857 986
  Claims payable 40,008 10,421 50,429

Current maturities of noncurrent liabilities 115 - 115
Noncurrent liabilities:
  Due to participants 11,596 - 11,596
  Compensated absences payable 40 - 40
  Net pension liability 132 - 132
  Net OPEB liability 182 - 182
          Total noncurrent liabilities 11,950 - 11,950
          Total liabilities 52,202 11,278 63,480

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension deferrals 60 - 60

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 18 - 18
Unrestricted 34,918 23,515 58,433
          Total net position 34,936$ 23,515$ 58,451$
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Employee
Risk Health

Management and Life Total

OPERATING REVENUES:
  Charges for services-
      Risk management and safety fees 3,224$ 6,299$ 9,523$
      Claims:
        Employer 13,189 42,364 55,553
        Employee - 11,193 11,193
        Other 214 211 425
           Total claims 13,403 53,768 67,171
      Premiums 5,176 18,906 24,082
      Reimbursement from trust - 23,979 23,979
        Total operating revenues 21,803 102,952 124,755
OPERATING EXPENSES:
  Administration 3,791 6,299 10,090
  Claims 8,429 77,857 86,286
  Insurance premiums 5,082 18,906 23,988
  Depreciation 5 - 5
        Total operating expenses 17,307 103,062 120,369
        Operating income (loss) 4,496 (110) 4,386
NONOPERATING REVENUES:
  Investment earnings 341 171 512
        Change in net position 4,837 61 4,898
Total net position - beginning 30,099 23,454 53,553
Total net position - ending 34,936$ 23,515$ 58,451$ 
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(In Thousands)

Employee
Risk Health

Management and Life Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
  Receipts from participants 7,762$ 30,099$ 37,861$
  Payments to suppliers (2,102) (6,336) (8,438)
  Internal activity - receipts from other funds 20,150 48,891 69,041
  Receipts from trust - 23,979 23,979
  Receipts from recovery of losses 228 - 228
  Payments to employees (1,719) - (1,719)
  Payments for claims (12,268) (77,742) (90,010)
  Payments for premiums (8,384) (18,651) (27,035)
  Other receipts (payments) - 211 211
    Net cash provided by operating activities 3,667 451 4,118
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
  Interest received 427 162 589
     Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,094 613 4,707
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 82,726 34,130 116,856
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 86,820$ 34,743$ 121,563$ 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
  CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
  Operating income (loss) 4,496$ (110)$ 4,386$
  Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
    to net cash provided by operating activities-
    Depreciation 5 - 5 
    Change in assets and liabilities:
      (Increase) in receivables (3) - (3)
      (Increase) decrease in due from other governments (2) 228 226
      Decrease in net pension asset 164 - 164
      (Increase) in deferred outflows of resources for pensions (1) - (1)
      Increase in accounts payable 36 218 254
      Increase  in claims payable 2,256 115 2,371
      (Decrease) in due to participants (3,093) - (3,093)
      Increase in compensated absences payable 5 - 5 
      Increase in net pension liability 132 - 132
      Increase in net OPEB liability 11 - 11
      (Decrease) in deferred inflows of resources for pensions (339) - (339)
        Total adjustments (829) 561 (268)
      Net cash provided by operating activities 3,667$ 451$ 4,118$
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Statistical Section

Photo by Mike Nail, City of Charlotte Employee
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Report of Independent Auditor on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Honorable Mayor and  
Members of the City Council 
City of Charlotte, North Carolina 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, 
the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina (the “City”), as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprises the City’s basic 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 31, 2016. Our report includes a 
reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the Charlotte Regional Visitors Authority (the 
“CRVA”), as described in our report on the City’s financial statements. This report does not include the results of 
the other auditors’ testing of internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are 
reported separately by those auditors.  

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs that we consider to be a significant deficiency (2016-001).  
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Compliance and Other Matters
The City’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings 
and questioned costs. The City’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.  

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the City’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose 

Raleigh, North Carolina
October 31, 2016
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Report of Independent Auditor on Compliance for each Major Federal Program
and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance With OMB Uniform Guidance

and the State Single Audit Implementation Act

To the Honorable Mayor and  
Members of the City Council 
City of Charlotte, North Carolina 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited the City of Charlotte, North Carolina (the “City”), compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors 
in North Carolina, issued by the Local Government Commission, that could have a direct and material effect on 
each of the City’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016.  The City’s major federal programs 
are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs.   

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants 
applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City’s major federal programs based 
on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administration Requirements, Cost Principals, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform 
Guidance”) and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance and the 
State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that 
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures, as we considered necessary in the circumstances.  

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2016.  
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our audit 
of compliance, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have 
a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over 
compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that 
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over 
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that were not identified.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have 
not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Raleigh, North Carolina
October 31, 2016 
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Report of Independent Auditor on Compliance for each Major State Program
and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance With OMB Uniform Guidance

and the State Single Audit Implementation Act

To the Honorable Mayor and  
Members of the City Council 
City of Charlotte, North Carolina 

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program
We have audited the City of Charlotte, North Carolina (the “City”), compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the Local 
Government Commission, that could have a direct and material effect on each of the City’s major State 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2016. The City’s major State programs are identified in the summary of 
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.   

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants 
applicable to its State programs.  

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City’s major state programs based on 
our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States; applicable sections of Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principals, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform 
Guidance”), as described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, and the State Single 
Audit Implementation Act. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance, and the State Single Audit Implementation 
Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a 
major State program occurred.   An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures, as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances.  

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major state 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major State Program
In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major State programs for the year ended June 30, 
2016.
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Report On Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our audit 
of compliance, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have 
a direct and material effect on a major State program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major State program 
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State 
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that 
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State program will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a State program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over 
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that were not identified.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have 
not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Raleigh, North Carolina
October 31, 2016
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Section I – Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements 
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness(es) identified?  yes X  no 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses?        X  yes  no 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?         yes X no

Federal Awards
Internal control over major federal programs: 

Material weakness(es) identified? _______ yes X  no 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? _______ yes X  none reported 

Noncompliance material to federal awards? _______ yes  X  no 

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with the 2 CFR 200.516 (a)?  yes X  no 

Identification of major federal programs: 

CFDA Numbers Names of Federal Program or Cluster 
17.267 Workforce Investment Act 
97.067 Homeland Security Grant Program 
20.223 Transportation Infrastructure Finance and 

Innovation Act 
Federal Transit Cluster: 

20.500    Capital Investment Grants 
20.507    Formula Grants 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and 
Type B Programs: $  3,000,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?       X       yes no
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

I – Summary of Auditor’s Results (continued)

State Awards
Internal control over major state programs: 

Material weakness(es) identified? _______ yes X  no 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? _______ yes X  none reported 

Noncompliance material to state awards? _______ yes  X  no 

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major state programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with the Audit Manual for 
Governmental Auditors in North Carolina? _______ yes    X no

Identification of major state programs: 

Names of State Program or Cluster 
Non-State System Street-Aid Allocation (Powell Bill) 
Public Transportation Section 5309 Capital Programs
The One North Carolina Fund 

Section II – Financial Statement Findings 

Significant Deficiency 
Finding 2016-001 

Criteria: The City is responsible for recording long-term liabilities in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Condition: The City over-stated the long-term liability associated with a loan from the Transportation Infrastructure 
Finance and Innovation Act of 1998.

Effect: The financial statements were misstated as of June 30, 2016. The City subsequently corrected the 
misstatements.

Cause: The City had initiated a draw down that was not subsequently received until after the end of June; however 
the City recorded the additional liability as of June 30, 2016.  

Recommendation: We recommend that the City establish more effective internal controls over the recordation of 
long-term liabilities in connection with draw down requests on outstanding loans.

Views of responsible officials: The City agrees with this finding. 
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.

Section IV – State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported. 
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Section II – Financial Statement Findings 

Finding 2016-001 
Significant Deficiency 

Name of contact person: Betty Mattos, Chief Accountant 

Corrective Action:  The City’s Finance Office will educate staff that long-term liabilities for outstanding loans 
should be recorded based on the date that funds are received and not on the date that funds are requested. 

Proposed completion date: November 2016 

Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported. 

Section IV – State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported. 
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Section V – Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings 

Finding 2015 – 001: The City’s Charlotte Area Transit System developed and implemented internal procedures to 
ensure all quarterly SF-425 Federal Financial Reports are prepared and submitted timely. These procedures have 
been implemented and the Grants Supervisor maintains a checklist that documents compliance with the new 
process.
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Program Name CFDA Number Grantor's Award Number Amount 
Transportation Infrastructure Finance and 
Innovation Act (TIFIA) Program 20.223 TIFIA-2015-1007A 64,753,533$

CITY OF CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
JUNE 30, 2016

Note 1: Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards (SEFSA) includes the federal and
State grant activity of the City of Charlotte under the programs of the federal government and the State of North 
Carolina for the year ended June 30, 2016. The information in this SEFSA is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and the State Single Audit Implementation Act.
Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the City of Charlotte it is not
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of the City of
Charlotte.

Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting 

Expenditures reported in the SEFSA are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  Such expenditures are
recognized following the cost principles contained in Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures
are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. The City of Charlotte has elected not to use the 10-
percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

Note 3: Loans Outstanding

City of Charlotte had the following loan balance outstanding at June 30, 2016 that the grantor/pass-through 
grantor has still imposed continuing compliance requirements . oan outstanding at the beginning of the
year made during the year  included in the SEFSA. The balance of loan outstanding at June 30, 2016
consist of:
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